
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

AGENDA

DECEMBER 10, 2020

6:00 P.M.

Roll Call.

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes: November 12, 2020

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations

(1) P-1120-35 Scott Thomson Is Requesting Rezoning For 3412 Ridgedale Dr. from 
Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purpose Of Single 
Family Development. 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

MINUTES

NOVEMBER 12, 2020

6:00 P.M.

The Planning & Zoning Commission of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 
PM, following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
in coordination with a Proclamation from Governor Ivey and pursuant to orders from the Jefferson 
County Health Department Official requiring social distancing along with limits of attendees, this 
meeting was held with a portion of the Commission digitally attending the meeting via remote 
computer locations utilizing a Zoom.com application. Staff and general public/audience members 
also were invited to attend via Zoom.com following publication pursuant to Alabama law. 
Chairman Barnes called the meeting to order and the City Planner called the roll with the 
following:

MEMBERS PRESENT: Erica Barnes, Chair
Lyle Larson*
Jonathan Romeo*
Hasting Sykes*
Cheryl Cobb*
Ryan Ferrell
Mike Vercher
David Maluff
Rusty Weaver*

MEMBERS ABSENT:

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Conrad Garrison, City Planner
Christopher Brady, City Engineer
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk
*Member present via Zoom

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Ms. Barnes stated that the minutes of the meeting October 8, 2020 are presented for approval.

MOTION Motion to approve minutes as amended was by Mr. Vercher and second was by Mr.
Ferrell.  Voice vote as follows:



Mr. Vercher – yes Mr. Ferrell– yes
Mr. Larson – yes Ms. Cobb– yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Maluff – yes 
Mr. Sykes – yes Mr. Weaver – abstained
Ms. Barnes – yes

Final Plats

Consent Agenda

(1) P-1120-37 Shannan Easter Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Easter Resurvey of 
Erwin Circle. The Purpose for This Request Is to Combine Acreage With 
Platted Lot. The Property Is Owned By Shannan Easter and Is Zoned 
Vestavia Hills R-2.

(2) P-1120-38 Amelia Ousley Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Ousley’s Resurvey.
The Purpose for This Request Is to Subdivide One Lot Into Two. The 
Property Is Owned By Amelia Ousley and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-2.

(3) P-1120-41 Tray I. Teague Et Al. Are Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey 
Of Lot 6A And 6B Young’s Addition To Shades Cliff. The Purpose for 
This Request Is to Subdivide One Lot Into Two. The Property Is Owned By 
Tray I. Teague Et Al. and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-4.

(4) P-1120-42 Judith Armstrong Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Armstrong’s 
Resurvey. The Purpose for This Request Is to Resurvey Lot Lines. The 
Property Is Owned By Judith Armstrong and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-1.

Ms. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning this request, Ms. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Ferrell made a motion to approve items 1-4. Second was by Mr. Weaver.
Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Vercher – yes Mr. Ferrell– yes
Mr. Larson – yes Ms. Cobb– yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Maluff – yes 
Mr. Sykes – yes Mr. Weaver – yes
Ms. Barnes – yes

Preliminary Plats

(5) P-1120-40 Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP Is Requesting Preliminary Plat Approval
For The Bray Townhomes. The Purpose for This Request Is to Create a 46 
Lot Townhome Development. The Property Is Owned By Liberty Park Joint 
Venture, LLP and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills PR-1.



(6) P-1120-39 Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP Is Requesting Preliminary Plat Approval
For The Brayfield Residential Phase 1. The Purpose for This Request Is to 
Create a 59 Lot Single Family Development. The Property Is Owned By 
Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills PR-1.

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated that the request falls under the 
umbrella approval for Liberty Park.

James Parsons was present to answer any questions.

MOTION Mr. Ferrell made a motion to approve Preliminary Plat For The Bray Townhomes.
Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Vercher – yes Mr. Ferrell– yes
Mr. Larson – yes Ms. Cobb– yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Maluff – yes 
Mr. Sykes – yes Mr. Weaver – yes
Ms. Barnes – yes

MOTION Mr. Ferrell made a motion to approve Preliminary Plat For The Brayfield 
Residential Phase 1. Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Vercher – yes Mr. Ferrell– yes
Mr. Larson – yes Ms. Cobb– yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Maluff – yes 
Mr. Sykes – yes Mr. Weaver – yes
Ms. Barnes – yes

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations

(7) P-1120-35 Scott Thomson Is Requesting Rezoning For 3412 Ridgedale Dr. from 
Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purpose Of Single Family
Development. 

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated that the request is for four single 
family houses with a newly created street.

Jason Kessler was present to explain the request and answer any questions. He stated that the 
development would serve as a buffer between commercial property on Rocky Ridge Rd.  and the 
already existing property on Ridgedale Dr.

Ms. Cobb asked Mr. Kessler if there would be sidewalks. Mr. Kessler stated there would be, that 
could potentially extend all the way to Rocky Ridge.



Ms. Barnes asked Mr. Kessler what the current buffer is next to the commercial property and how 
it would change. Mr. Kessler stated there was currently not much there and that the development 
would improve the buffer.

Mr. Ferrell asked Mr. Kessler how he would prevent overflow parking that could block the street. 
Mr. Kessler stated he would add signage to the development.

Ms. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  

Wade Parker, 3420 Ridgedale Dr. spoke in opposition due to traffic concerns.
Kelly Raynor, 3416 Ridgedale Dr. spoke in opposition due to density.
Randy Hancock, 3409 Ridgedale Dr. spoke in opposition due to drainage and road width.
Kent Howard, 2425 Ridgedale Dr. spoke in opposition.
Shaun Willen, 3435 Ridgedale Dr. spoke in opposition.

Ms. Barnes closed the public hearing.

Ms. Barnes and Mr. Larson agreed that the development could be considered transitional but it is 
hard to recommend approval when neighbors speak in opposition.

The Commission asked Mr. Kessler if he would like to postpone the vote to allow more time to 
consult with neighbors. He agreed.

Case postponed.

(8) P-1120-36 Jordan Weaver Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval For The Intended 
Purpose To Allow Five Unrelated Adults To Reside In A Single Family 
Dwelling Until June 2022 For The Address at 1733 Old Creek Trail 
(Zoned R-3).

Mr. Garrison stepped down from the dias and Ms. Leavings conducted the rest of the meeting.

Ms. Leavings stated the property and Mr. Weaver are currently in violation of the zoning code. The 
violation was discovered due to neighbors complaining about excess vehicles parking on the street.

Mr. Weaver was present to answer any questions the Commission had. He apologized for any harm 
he had done, as it was not his intention. He also stated he was not aware of the rule regarding single 
family housing.

Ms. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  

Conrad Garrison, 2309 Pine Crest Dr. spoke in opposition due to the applicant not meeting all ten 
requirements for approval.
Chris Preston, 2313 Pine Crest Dr. spoke in opposition due to the lack of parking and the increase 
in noise that has occurred at the house.

Ms. Barnes closed the public hearing.



MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval For The 
Intended Purpose To Allow Five Unrelated Adults To Reside In A Single Family Dwelling Until 
June 2022. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Vercher – no Mr. Ferrell– no
Mr. Romeo – no Mr. Maloof – no
Mr. Larson – no Ms. Cobb – no
Mr. Sykes – no Mr. Weaver – no
Mrs. Barnes – no

Motion failed due to the application not meeting all ten Conditional Use 
requirements (specifically 1-5, 9) as required in Section 13.3.4 in the Zoning 
Ordinance.

Conrad Garrison, City Planner



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2020

CASE: P-1120-35

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3412 Ridgedale Dr.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Scott Thomson

REPRESENTING AGENT: Jason Kessler

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking rezoning Ridgedale Dr. for a four 
lot single family development. This property is +/- 1.25 acres and is adjacent to El 
Poblano, Andy’s Farmers Market, and a gas station. The request would remove any 
existing structures and plat four lots that back up to the commercial development. The 
lots would be serviced by a newly created public street. Proposed setbacks are 25’ in 
the front, 20’ un the rear, and 10’ on each side. 

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Comprehensive Plan 
designates this area for low/medium density. With lots just under a quarter of an acre 
this development could be considered medium density. The development could also 
be considered transitional due to the nature of uses next door.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Final plat must be recorded before 
rezoning is final.

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 



2

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 







B
as

e 
La

yo
ut

 2
 R

id
ge

da
le

.d
gn

 1
0/

5/
20

20
 3

:4
2:

04
 P

M







34
12

 R
ID

G
E

D
A

L
E

 
D

R
IV

E
V

es
ta

vi
a 

H
ill

s,
 A

la
ba

m
a



E
xi

st
in

g 
P

ro
pe

rt
y



P
ro

po
se

d 
L

ay
ou

t



WW
e 

do
 n

ot
 b

el
ie

ve
 th

at
 R

1
 is

 th
e 

id
ea

l z
on

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 s

ub
je

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y.

  I
t i

s 
co

nt
ig

uo
us

 
to

 m
ul

tip
le

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

is
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
st

re
et

 fr
om

 a
 d

en
se

ly
 p

op
ul

at
ed

 
ga

rd
en

 h
om

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 W

e 
be

lie
ve

 a
 4

 lo
t s

ub
di

vi
si

on
 w

ou
ld

 c
re

at
e 

th
e 

pe
rf

ec
t 

tr
an

si
tio

na
l z

on
in

g 
fr

om
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 g

ar
de

n 
ho

m
e 

lo
ts

, t
o 

m
ed

iu
m

 s
iz

ed
 lo

ts
, t

o 
la

rg
er

 
lo

ts
.  In

 a
n 

ef
fo

rt
 to

 c
re

at
e 

th
e 

be
st

 a
nd

 m
os

t s
en

si
bl

e 
de

si
gn

, o
ur

 h
om

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
la

ce
d 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 th
e 

si
ng

le
 fa

m
ily

 h
om

e 
to

 th
e 

Ea
st

 a
nd

 c
lo

se
r t

o 
th

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
to

 
th

e 
W

es
t. 

 T
hi

s 
he

lp
s 

cr
ea

te
 a

 b
uf

fe
r b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s.
  A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, w

e 
pl

an
 to

 p
la

nt
 a

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
bu

ff
er

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ho

m
e 

to
 th

e 
Ea

st
 a

nd
 o

ur
 n

ew
ly

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 
pu

bl
ic

 ro
ad

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

riv
ac

y 
an

d 
an

 a
es

th
et

ic
 a

pp
ea

l.

La
st

ly
, t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 z

on
in

g 
w

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 fo

r 2
 h

om
es

 to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 o

n 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t p
ro

pe
rt

y 
w

ith
ou

t a
 re

zo
ne

 o
r v

ar
ia

nc
e.

  U
lti

m
at

el
y,

 w
e 

ar
e 

as
ki

ng
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 d
en

si
ty

 
fr

om
 2

 to
 4

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 w

ith
 it

 w
ill

 c
om

e 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
lo

ng
 

w
ith

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
va

lu
e 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
fo

r t
he

 a
re

a.



N
ei

gh
bo

ri
ng

 P
ro

pe
rt

y

CC
on

tig
uo

us
 to

 th
e 

W
es

t o
f t

he
 s

ub
je

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ar
e 

th
re

e 
se

pa
ra

te
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s.
  E

l 
Po

bl
an

o 
re

st
au

ra
nt

, A
nd

y’
s 

Fa
rm

 M
ar

ke
t, 

an
d 

Sh
el

l G
as

 S
ta

tio
n 

al
l l

oc
at

ed
 o

n 
R

oc
ky

 R
id

ge
 

R
oa

d.
  T

ur
ni

ng
 o

nt
o 

R
id

ge
da

le
 D

riv
e 

fr
om

 
R

oc
ky

 R
id

ge
, t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

to
 s

in
gl

e 
fa

m
ily

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l. 

 



N
ei

gh
bo

rh
in

g
P

ro
pe

rt
y

TTo
 th

e 
N

or
th

 o
f t

he
 s

ub
je

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

ry
 W

oo
d 

Tr
ac

e 
su

bd
iv

is
io

n.
  T

hi
s 

is
 a

 g
ar

de
n 

ho
m

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f l

ot
s 

be
in

g 
ab

ou
t .

11
 a

cr
es

 a
 p

ie
ce

.  
Th

e 
ho

m
es

 a
re

 
ro

ug
hl

y 
10

 fe
et

 a
pa

rt
 fr

om
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
.  

C
on

ve
rs

el
y,

 o
ur

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pl

an
 w

ou
ld

 o
ff

er
 lo

ts
 th

at
 a

re
 a

lm
os

t 
tw

ic
e 

th
at

 s
iz

e 
at

 .2
0

 a
cr

es
 a

 p
ie

ce
.  

Th
e 

ho
m

es
 w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 2

0
 fe

et
 a

pa
rt

.  

R
id

ge
da

le
 D

riv
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 h
om

es
 o

n 
la

rg
er

 lo
ts

 a
s 

w
el

l. 
 It

 is
 o

ur
 

be
lie

f t
ha

t o
ur

 p
ro

po
se

d 
su

bd
iv

is
io

n 
is

 a
 g

oo
d 

fit
 a

s 
m

ed
iu

m
 

si
ze

d 
lo

ts
 in

te
rs

pe
rs

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
ga

rd
en

 h
om

e 
lo

ts
 a

nd
 la

rg
er

 
lo

ts
.



C
om

m
on

 A
re

a/
G

re
en

 S
pa

ce
IIn

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ne
w

 s
id

ew
al

ks
, a

 b
ra

nd
 n

ew
 p

ub
lic

 ro
ad

, a
nd

 
st

or
m

 w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
, o

ur
 p

la
n 

in
co

rp
or

at
es

 a
 c

om
m

on
 

ar
ea

/g
re

en
 s

pa
ce

 in
to

 th
e 

de
si

gn
.  

W
e 

be
li e

ve
 a

 g
re

en
 s

pa
ce

 in
 w

hi
ch

 to
 c

on
gr

eg
at

e 
w

ith
 

ne
ig

hb
or

s 
an

d 
fr

ie
nd

s 
is

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 b

en
ef

it 
to

 a
ny

 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
.  

Th
at

 is
 e

ve
n 

m
or

e 
tr

ue
 in

 a
 w

al
ka

bl
e 

ar
ea

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
is

 o
ne

 a
nd

 it
 s

ho
ul

d 
on

ly
 a

dd
 to

 th
e 

v i
lla

ge
-li

ke
 a

tm
os

ph
er

e 
w

e 
ar

e 
al

l t
ry

in
g 

to
 re

sp
on

si
bl

y 
ad

d 
to

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 R
oc

ky
 R

id
ge

.

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
a 

co
up

le
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f s

m
al

l c
om

m
on

 a
re

as
 w

e 
ha

ve
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
pa

st
.  

O
ne

 fr
om

 o
ur

 W
es

tm
in

st
er

 
ne

ig
hb

or
h o

od
 in

 V
es

ta
vi

a 
an

d 
Le

nn
ox

 c
om

m
un

ity
 in

 th
e 

H
oo

ve
r a

re
a.



P
re

vi
ou

s 
W

or
k 

–
P

um
ph

ou
se

 V
ill

ag
e

V
es

ta
vi

a 
H

ill
s



P
re

vi
ou

s 
W

or
k 

–
T

he
 C

ov
e 

at
 E

dg
ew

oo
d

H
om

ew
oo

d



P
re

vi
ou

s 
W

or
k 

–
T

he
 C

ov
e 

at
 E

dg
ew

oo
d

H
om

ew
oo

d



P
re

vi
ou

s 
W

or
k 

–
T

he
 C

ov
e 

at
 O

ve
rt

on
V

es
ta

vi
a 

H
ill

s 
&

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
B

ro
ok



A
bo

ut
 K

A
D

C
O

 H
om

es

W
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

 b
us

in
es

s 
he

re
 in

 
B

ir
m

in
gh

am
 fo

r 
ov

er
 3

5 
ye

ar
s.

  W
ith

 
a 

st
ro

ng
 a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

t f
oc

us
 o

n 
th

e 
V

es
ta

vi
a 

ar
ea

 m
ar

ke
t, 

w
e 

ha
ve

 h
el

pe
d 

cr
ea

te
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 

W
el

lin
gt

on
 P

ar
k,

 C
am

br
id

ge
, 

K
en

si
ng

to
n,

 P
an

or
am

a 
B

ro
ok

, 
C

ro
ss

br
id

ge
, C

ob
bl

es
to

ne
, 

W
es

tm
in

st
er

, T
he

 C
ov

e 
at

 O
ve

rt
on

, 
P

um
ph

ou
se

 V
ill

ag
e,

 &
 m

or
e. .

  



A
bo

ut
 K

A
D

C
O

 H
om

es

W
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

se
ve

ra
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 in
 V

es
ta

vi
a 

su
ch

 a
s 

V
es

ta
vi

a 
T

er
ra

ce
 to

w
nh

om
es

, 
N

at
ch

ez
 D

ri
ve

, P
oe

 D
ri

ve
 a

t O
ve

rt
on

 
V

ill
ag

e,
 F

ai
rh

av
en

 M
an

or
, a

nd
 

W
in

w
ar

d 
L

an
e.

 Y
ou

 c
an

 fi
nd

 o
ut

 
m

or
e 

ab
ou

t u
s 

by
 v

is
iti

ng
 

k ka
dc

oh
om

es
.c

om




